
Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 
Regular Meeting of The Board of Trustees 

THE MEETING WILL BEGIN AT 7:00 PM AND WILL BE HELD AT THE NORTHFIELD LIBRARY. 
INSTRUCTIONS TO JOIN VIRTUALLY POSTED AT WWW.WNPLD.ORG 

*Attachments

AGENDA 
Monday, December 11, 2023 

I. Call to Order

II. Roll Call

III. Public Comments

IV. Approval of Minutes

• Approval of Minutes of the November 14, 2023 Regular Meeting* (1 min)

V. Financial Report

• November 2023 Financial Statements* (5 mins)

VI. Library Reports

• Director’s Report* (10 mins)

• Vice President’s Comments (5 mins)

VII. Liaisons to Other Organizations – Reports

• Winnetka Village (5 mins)

• Northfield Village (5 mins)

VIII. Unfinished Business

• Update on Internet Policy notification for mobile devices (10 mins)

• Update & Discussion on Northfield Library Renovation Project (5 mins)

IX. New Business

• FY22-23 Financial Audit* (15 mins)

• 2023 Review- Standards for Illinois Libraries* (10 mins)

• Feedback on Draft Annual Report (5 mins)

X. Communications

• The library will be closed on Sunday December 24th, Monday December 25th, Sunday
December 31st and Monday January 1st for the holidays.

• The next Decennial Meeting on Government Efficiency will be on Monday, January
15th at the Winnetka Library (time TBD)

• The next regular meeting will be on Monday, January 15th at 7 p.m. at the Winnetka
Library.

1

http://www.wnpld.org/


Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 
Regular Meeting of The Board of Trustees 

THE MEETING WILL BEGIN AT 7:00 PM AND WILL BE HELD AT THE NORTHFIELD LIBRARY. 
INSTRUCTIONS TO JOIN VIRTUALLY POSTED AT WWW.WNPLD.ORG 

*Attachments

XI. Public Comments

XII. Adjourn to Closed Session

• Closed Session

5 ILCS 120/2(c)(5): To consider the purchase or lease of real property for the use of
the public body, including meetings held for the purpose of discussing whether a
particular parcel should be acquired.

XIII. Return to Open Session

XIV. Adjournment

2

http://www.wnpld.org/


WINNETKA-NORTHFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

November 14, 2023 
 

I.  Call to Order 
The meeting was held at the Winnetka Library, 768 Oak St., Winnetka, 
Illinois.  President Mitchell called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. A quorum was 
present. 

 
II. Roll Call 

Present: In-person Trustees Travis Gosselin, Sarah Munoz, Ranjini Shankar, 
Thomas Sundell, Matt Kinnich, and Board President Melissa Mitchell; and Library 
Director Monica Dombrowski. 
 
Absent: Trustee Deborah Vandergrift 

 
 Present was library employee Mark Swenson (IT Manager). 
 Present was Winnetka resident Jeffrey Liss 
 
III. Public Comments 
 No public comments. 
 
IV. Approval of Minutes 
 Approve minutes of the October 16, 2023 regular meeting. 
 

President Mitchell announced approval of the October 16, 2023 Regular 
Meetings Minutes. 

 
V. Financial Report 

Trustee Munoz presented the October 2023 Financial Statement. 
 
VI.  Library Reports 
 Library Director’s Report 

Director Dombrowski presented the October 2023 Director’s Report, which was 
included in the October 2023 board packet. 
Board President’s Report 
President Mitchell had nothing to report. 
 

VII.  Liaison Reports 
Winnetka Village – Trustee Gosselin had nothing to report.  Director Dombrowski 
stated that the library will participate in the village seasonal Window Decorating 
event. 

3



Northfield Village – Trustee Kinnich reported on the village manager search and 
zoning discussion.  Trustees Shankar and Munoz spoke of the village survey on 
the village website. 

 
VIII. Unfinished Business 

• Approval of the FY23-24 Levy Ordinance 
On a motion by Trustee Munoz and by roll call vote, the Trustees approved 
ordinance. 
 
Roll call vote: 
 Ayes: Trustees Kinnich, Munoz, Shankar, Gosselin, Sundell 
 Nayes: none 
 Absent/abstaining: President Mitchell, Trustee Vandergrift 
 

• Update on the Northfield Library Renovation Project 
President Mitchell provided an update on negotiations with the Village of  
Northfield, with respect to the library district’s real estate broker’s discussion with 
the village board representative regarding the potential monthly rent amount.  
The real estate broker drafted a revised letter of intent for the library board’s 
review. 
 

 
IX. New Business 

• Discussion and approval of the revised Internet Access Policy 
Following discussion, on Trustee Sundell’s motion, the Trustees approved the 
policy as written on voice vote. 

 
• Discussion and approval of the revised Study Room Policy 

Following discussion, on Trustee Gosselin’s motion, the Trustees approved the 
policy as written on voice vote. 
 

 
X. Communications 

The next regular meeting of the board will be held on Monday, December 11th at 
7 p.m. at the Northfield Library. 

 
XI. Public Comments 

Jeffrey Liss commented on the Study Room Policy. 
 
XII. Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Board, a Motion to adjourn to 
Closed Session was made by Trustee Gosselin. 
 
The Motion passed on voice vote and President Mitchell adjourned the meeting 
at 7:53 p.m. 

 

4



XIII.  Return to Open Session 
• Update on the Northfield Library Renovation Project 

 
On returning to Open Session at 8:55 P.M., President Mitchell provided a brief 
summary of the closed session discussion: the letter of intent will be revised this 
week per the discussion and be directed to the Northfield Village Board 
representative by the library district’s attorney in this matter. 
 

XIV.  Adjournment 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a Motion to adjourn 
was made by Trustee Kinnich. 
 
The Motion passed on voice vote and President Mitchell adjourned the meeting 
at 8:57 p.m. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Thomas Sundell 
Board Secretary 
 
    _____________________ Melissa Mitchell, President 
 
    _____________________ Thomas Sundell, Secretary 

5



Revenues

Library Fund 4,552,273.00 1,896,780.42 1,033,884.42 %22.71 (862,896.00)

IMRF Fund 66,000.00 27,500.00 3,605.27 %5.46 (23,894.73)

FICA Fund 0.00 0.00 21,220.52 %0.00 21,220.52

Building Fund 380,000.00 158,333.33 0.00 %0.00 (158,333.33)

Unemployment Fund 1.00 0.42 0.19 %19.00 (0.23)

Total Revenues 4,998,274.00 2,082,614.17 1,058,710.40 %21.18 (1,023,903.77)

Expenses

Library Fund 4,552,250.00 1,896,770.83 1,594,288.71 %35.02 (302,482.12)
IMRF Fund 66,000.00 27,500.00 20,561.14 %31.15 (6,938.86)
FICA Fund 70,000.00 29,166.67 60,502.51 %86.43 31,335.84
Building Fund 380,000.00 158,333.33 173,928.74 %45.77 15,595.41
Unemployment Fund 1.00 0.42 0.00 %0.00 (0.42)
Special Reserve Fund 5,200,000.00 2,166,666.67 0.00 %0.00 (2,166,666.67)

Total Expenses 10,268,251.00 4,278,437.92 1,849,281.10 %18.01 (2,429,156.82)

Total Revenues 4,998,274.00 2,082,614.17 1,058,710.40 %21.18 (1,023,903.77)
Total Expenses 10,268,251.00 4,278,437.92 1,849,281.10 %18.01 2,429,156.82

Excess Revenues less Expenses (5,269,977.00) (2,195,823.75) (790,570.70) %15.00 1,405,253.05

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

All Funds Summary

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2023
Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Variance vs.

Annual Prorated Current % of Prorated

Budget Budget Year-to-Date Budget Budget

6



Annual Prorated Year-to-Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget Actual Budget Prorated Budget

Operating Revenue

Property Tax 4,106,860.00 1,711,191.67 807,209.73 %19.66 (903,981.94)

Replacement Tax 90,000.00 37,500.00 36,413.14 %40.46 (1,086.86)

Collections 160,413.00 66,838.75 61,481.24 %38.33 (5,357.51)

Materials 5,000.00 2,083.33 3,434.59 %68.69 1,351.26

Other Income 190,000.00 79,166.67 125,345.72 %65.97 46,179.05

Total Operating Revenue 4,552,273.00 1,896,780.42 1,033,884.42 %22.71 (862,896.00)

Operating Expenses

Personnel 2,496,250.00 1,040,104.17 887,525.14 %35.55 (152,579.03)

Administration 197,750.00 82,395.83 85,407.50 %43.19 3,011.67

Utilities 106,500.00 44,375.00 29,379.84 %27.59 (14,995.16)

IT Services 375,000.00 156,250.00 199,431.87 %53.18 43,181.87

Public Relations 47,000.00 19,583.33 17,268.90 %36.74 (2,314.43)

Library Materials - Adult 534,500.00 222,708.33 232,132.48 %43.43 9,424.15

Library Materials - Youth 85,000.00 35,416.67 40,806.70 %48.01 5,390.03

Programs 90,250.00 37,604.17 43,427.30 %48.12 5,823.13

Capital 620,000.00 258,333.33 58,779.99 %9.48 (199,553.34)

Total Operating Expenses 4,552,250.00 1,896,770.83 1,594,288.71 %35.02 (302,482.12)

Total Revenues 4,552,273.00 1,896,780.42 1,033,884.42 %22.71 (862,896.00)

Total Expenses 4,552,250.00 1,896,770.83 1,594,288.71 %35.02 (302,482.12)

Excess Revenues less Expenses 23.00 9.59 (560,404.29) %(2,436,540.39) (560,413.88)

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Library Fund Summary

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2023

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

7



LIBRARY FUND

Revenues

Taxes

Property Taxes Collections 4,106,860.00 1,711,191.67 799,043.54 %19.46 (912,148.13)

Property Taxes Collections-Liability 0.00 0.00 5,942.05 0.00 5,942.05

Property Taxes Collections-Audit 0.00 0.00 2,224.14 0.00 2,224.14

Replacement Tax 90,000.00 37,500.00 36,413.14 40.46 (1,086.86)

Total Taxes 4,196,860.00 1,748,691.67 843,622.87 %20.10 (905,068.80)

Collections

Per Capita Grant 27,250.00 11,354.17 27,280.13 %100.11 15,925.96

Kenilworth Services 129,663.00 54,026.25 32,415.75 25.00 (21,610.50)

Studio Fees 1,000.00 416.67 383.60 38.36 (33.07)

Lost/Damaged Mat. 2,500.00 1,041.67 1,401.76 56.07 360.09

Total Collections 160,413.00 66,838.75 61,481.24 %38.33 (5,357.51)

Materials

Copy/Printing 4,000.00 1,666.67 2,913.49 %72.84 1,246.82

Book Sales 1,000.00 416.67 521.10 52.11 104.43

Total Materials 5,000.00 2,083.33 3,434.59 %68.69 1,351.26

Other Income

Checking Interest Income 3,500.00 1,458.33 3,335.46 %95.30 1,877.13

Byline Bank IMA Interest 164,000.00 68,333.33 119,758.18 73.02 51,424.85

Money Market-Interest 2,000.00 833.33 930.43 46.52 97.10

Misc. Revenue 0.00 0.00 56.50 0.00 56.50

Gift Fund (over $100) 500.00 208.33 1,000.00 200.00 791.67

Friends Donations 20,000.00 8,333.33 265.15 1.33 (8,068.18)

Total Other Income 190,000.00 79,166.67 125,345.72 %65.97 46,179.05

Total Revenue
4,552,273.00 1,896,780.42 1,033,884.42 %22.71 (862,896.00)

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Modified Cash Basis

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2023

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Annual Prorated Year to Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget
Actual

Budget Prorated
Budget

8



LIBRARY FUND

Expenses

Personnel

Salaries 2,040,000.00 850,000.00 775,835.44 %38.03 (74,164.56)

Health Insurance 335,000.00 139,583.33 103,224.48 30.81 (36,358.85)

Employee Asst. Program 500.00 208.33 0.00 0.00 (208.33)

Professional Development 30,000.00 12,500.00 6,587.58 21.96 (5,912.42)

Flexible Spending Account 750.00 312.50 240.00 32.00 (72.50)

Payroll Taxes 84,000.00 35,000.00 0.00 0.00 (35,000.00)

Staff Recognition/Events/Meetings 6,000.00 2,500.00 1,637.64 27.29 (862.36)

Total Personnel 2,496,250.00 1,040,104.17 887,525.14 %35.55 (152,579.03)

Administration

Audit Fees 12,950.00 5,395.83 6,200.00 %47.88 804.17

Library Supplies 38,000.00 15,833.33 14,155.63 37.25 (1,677.70)

Office Supplies 6,500.00 2,708.33 1,034.85 15.92 (1,673.48)

Breakroom Supplies 4,000.00 1,666.67 1,413.26 35.33 (253.41)

Postage 2,500.00 1,041.67 913.48 36.54 (128.19)

Hospitality 500.00 208.33 0.00 0.00 (208.33)

Accounting and Bookkeeping 24,000.00 10,000.00 7,830.00 32.63 (2,170.00)

Delivery Service 6,000.00 2,500.00 2,181.82 36.36 (318.18)

Payroll Services 9,500.00 3,958.33 3,828.18 40.30 (130.15)

Liability Insurance Costs 33,000.00 13,750.00 32,474.00 98.41 18,724.00

Board Expenses 1,500.00 625.00 40.90 2.73 (584.10)

Memberships 7,000.00 2,916.67 2,721.86 38.88 (194.81)

Legal 30,000.00 12,500.00 1,190.99 3.97 (11,309.01)

Consultants 5,000.00 2,083.33 0.00 0.00 (2,083.33)

Investment Fees 16,800.00 7,000.00 11,404.89 67.89 4,404.89

Miscellaneous 500.00 208.33 17.64 3.53 (190.69)

Total Administration 197,750.00 82,395.83 85,407.50 %43.19 3,011.67

Utilities

Electricity 42,000.00 17,500.00 19,387.89 %46.16 1,887.89

Water 9,000.00 3,750.00 2,253.38 25.04 (1,496.62)

Storm Sewer 1,500.00 625.00 532.64 35.51 (92.36)

Natural Gas 13,500.00 5,625.00 1,283.25 9.51 (4,341.75)

Telephone 16,500.00 6,875.00 751.07 4.55 (6,123.93)

Internet Services 24,000.00 10,000.00 5,171.61 21.55 (4,828.39)

Total Utilities 106,500.00 44,375.00 29,379.84 %27.59 (14,995.16)

Information Technology

CCS Operating 79,000.00 32,916.67 15,619.17 %19.77 (17,297.50)

Software 90,000.00 37,500.00 93,968.02 104.41 56,468.02

LAN Management 40,000.00 16,666.67 14,749.05 36.87 (1,917.62)

Hardware 3,000.00 1,250.00 3,168.72 105.62 1,918.72

Website/Platform Fees 100,000.00 41,666.67 39,330.40 39.33 (2,336.27)

Photocopier Leases 23,000.00 9,583.33 9,381.65 40.79 (201.68)

Computer Equipment 40,000.00 16,666.67 23,214.86 58.04 6,548.19

Total Information Technology 375,000.00 156,250.00 199,431.87 %53.18 43,181.87

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Modified Cash Basis

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2023

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Annual Prorated Year to Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget
Actual

Budget Prorated
Budget

9



LIBRARY FUND

Public Relations

Promotional 11,000.00 4,583.33 6,663.74 %60.58 2,080.41

Newsletter/Mailers 25,000.00 10,416.67 7,003.48 28.01 (3,413.19)

PR Supplies 4,000.00 1,666.67 2,410.41 60.26 743.74

Marketing/Advertising 7,000.00 2,916.67 1,191.27 17.02 (1,725.40)

Total Public Relations 47,000.00 19,583.33 17,268.90 %36.74 (2,314.43)

Library Materials - Adult

Books-Fiction-Adult 85,000.00 35,416.67 35,472.04 %41.73 55.37

Books-Non-Fiction-Adult 75,000.00 31,250.00 23,586.94 31.45 (7,663.06)

Periodicals 20,200.00 8,416.67 12,177.75 60.29 3,761.08

DVDs-Adult 25,000.00 10,416.67 8,381.78 33.53 (2,034.89)

Audio Books-Adult 6,500.00 2,708.33 2,794.35 42.99 86.02

Books-Digital 255,800.00 106,583.33 98,628.55 38.56 (7,954.78)

Online Database 65,000.00 27,083.33 51,091.07 78.60 24,007.74

Video Games-Adults 2,000.00 833.33 0.00 0.00 (833.33)

Total Library Materials - Adult 534,500.00 222,708.33 232,132.48 %43.43 9,424.15

Library Materials - Youth

Kits 5,000.00 2,083.33 1,948.77 %38.98 (134.56)

Books-Fiction-Juv 45,000.00 18,750.00 18,535.75 41.19 (214.25)

Books-Non-Fiction-Juv 13,000.00 5,416.67 8,271.98 63.63 2,855.31

DVDs-Juv 1,500.00 625.00 403.84 26.92 (221.16)

Audio Books/Talking Books Juv 15,000.00 6,250.00 9,575.00 63.83 3,325.00

Video Games-Juv 5,500.00 2,291.67 2,071.36 37.66 (220.31)

Total Library Materials - Youth 85,000.00 35,416.67 40,806.70 %48.01 5,390.03

Programs

Reading Programs 10,000.00 4,166.67 4,191.89 %41.92 25.22

Programming - Studio 11,750.00 4,895.83 5,318.24 45.26 422.41

Programming - Youth 30,000.00 12,500.00 19,112.80 63.71 6,612.80

Programming - Adult 37,500.00 15,625.00 13,924.13 37.13 (1,700.87)

Studio Maintenance/Repair 1,000.00 416.67 880.24 88.02 463.57

Total Programs 90,250.00 37,604.17 43,427.30 %48.12 5,823.13

Capital

Capital Outlay 440,000.00 183,333.33 8,242.54 %1.87 (175,090.79)

Building 155,000.00 64,583.33 42,593.05 27.48 (21,990.28)

Equipment/Furniture 25,000.00 10,416.67 7,944.40 31.78 (2,472.27)

Total Capital 620,000.00 258,333.33 58,779.99 %9.48 (199,553.34)

Total Expenses 4,552,250.00 1,896,770.83 1,594,288.71 %35.02 (302,482.12)

Excess Revenues less Expenses 23.00 9.59 (560,404.29) %(2,436,540.39) (560,413.88)

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Modified Cash Basis

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2023

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Annual Prorated Year to Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget
Actual

Budget Prorated
Budget

10



BUILDING FUND

Revenues

Property Taxes Collections-Building 380,000.00 158,333.33 0.00 %0.00 (158,333.33)

Total Revenue 380,000.00 158,333.33 0.00 %0.00 (158,333.33)

Expenses

Northfield Lease 69,000.00 28,750.00 28,412.10 %41.18 (337.90)

Janitorial Supplies 10,800.00 4,500.00 4,996.46 46.26 496.46

Snow Removal 9,000.00 3,750.00 1,435.00 15.94 (2,315.00)

Building Appraisal 300.00 125.00 285.00 95.00 160.00

Building Maintenance Service 100,000.00 41,666.67 40,000.00 40.00 (1,666.67)

Elevators 135,000.00 56,250.00 73,198.60 54.22 16,948.60

Landscaping 25,000.00 10,416.67 10,808.95 43.24 392.28

HVAC 11,200.00 4,666.67 4,099.00 36.60 (567.67)

Automatic Doors 5,000.00 2,083.33 4,726.50 94.53 2,643.17

Roof 700.00 291.67 0.00 0.00 (291.67)

Alarms & Security 6,000.00 2,500.00 1,313.07 21.88 (1,186.93)

Equipment 4,000.00 1,666.67 1,895.16 47.38 228.49

Plumbing 500.00 208.33 75.00 15.00 (133.33)

Electrical 1,500.00 625.00 1,500.00 100.00 875.00

Misc Services 2,000.00 833.33 1,183.90 59.20 350.57

Total Expenses 380,000.00 158,333.33 173,928.74 %45.77 15,595.41

Excess Revenues less Expenses 0.00$ 0.00$ (173,928.74)$ %0.00 (173,928.74)

IMRF FUND

Revenues

Property Taxes Collections-IMRF 66,000.00 27,500.00 3,605.27 %5.46 (23,894.73)

Total Revenue 66,000.00 27,500.00 3,605.27 %5.46 (23,894.73)

Expenses

IMRF Expenses 66,000.00 27,500.00 20,561.14 %31.15 (6,938.86)

Total Expenses 66,000.00 27,500.00 20,561.14 %31.15 (6,938.86)

Excess Revenues less Expenses 0.00$ 0.00$ (16,955.87)$ %0.00 (16,955.87)

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Modified Cash Basis

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2023

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Annual Prorated Year to Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget
Actual

Budget Prorated
Budget

11



FICA FUND

Revenues

Property Taxes Collections-FICA 0.00 0.00 21,220.52 %0.00 21,220.52

Total Revenue 0.00 0.00 21,220.52 %0.00 21,220.52

Expenses

FICA 70,000.00 29,166.67 60,502.51 %86.43 31,335.84

Total Expenses 70,000.00 29,166.67 60,502.51 %86.43 31,335.84

Excess Revenues less Expenses (70,000.00)$ (29,166.67)$ (39,281.99)$ %56.12 (10,115.32)

UNEMPLOYMENT FUND

Revenues

Property Taxes Collections-Unemployment 1.00 0.42 0.19 %19.00 (0.23)

Total Revenue 1.00 0.42 0.19 %19.00 (0.23)

Expenses

Unemployment 1.00 0.42 0.00 %0.00 (0.42)

Total Expenses 1.00 0.42 0.00 %0.00 (0.42)

Excess Revenues less Expenses 0.00$ 0.00$ 0.19$ %0.00 0.19

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Modified Cash Basis

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2023

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Annual Prorated Year to Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget
Actual

Budget Prorated
Budget

12



SPECIAL RESERVE FUND

Revenues

Transfer In 0.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00 0.00

Expenses

Capital Outlay 5,200,000.00 2,166,666.67 0.00 %0.00 (2,166,666.67)

Total Expenses 5,200,000.00 2,166,666.67 0.00 %0.00 (2,166,666.67)

Excess Revenues less Expenses (5,200,000.00)$ (2,166,666.67)$ 0.00$ %0.00 2,166,666.67

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Modified Cash Basis

For the 5 Months Ended November 30, 2023

Prorated Budget Percentage Spent: 41.67%

Annual Prorated Year to Date % of Variance vs.

Budget Budget
Actual

Budget Prorated
Budget

13



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

Vendor Checks

Chicago Entertainment Agency 4233 11/30/23 (1,200.00)

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth To VOID check 4233 -1,200.00

Quench USA, Inc. 4243 11/02/23 369.21

10-0-5122 Breakroom Supplies INV06001851 369.21

Amber Urich 4244 11/14/23 15.44

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Sept/Oct Travel Exp. Reimb. 15.44

Anna Karwowska 4245 11/14/23 259.82

10-0-5114 Professional Development October Travel Exp. Reimbursement 259.82

Art Excursions, Inc. (Jeff Mishur) 4246 11/14/23 360.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Art Excursions, Inc. (Jeff Mishur) 360.00

Associated Electrical Contractors 4247 11/14/23 734.04

70-0-5749 Elevators Inv 350077036 734.04

AT&T 4248 11/14/23 339.58

10-0-5176 Internet Services Inv S663007007-23283 339.58

Background Screening Consultants LLC 4249 11/14/23 141.29

10-0-5736 Legal Inv 22830 141.29

Chicago Tribune 4250 11/14/23 652.99

10-1-5342 Periodicals-Winnetka Acct #40046140 328.99

10-1-5342 Periodicals-Winnetka Acct #10046207 324.00

Engberg Anderson, Inc. 4251 11/14/23 3,000.00

10-0-5800 Capital Outlay Inv 23358401-4 3,000.00

Gayle Walsworth 4252 11/14/23 650.00

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Presenter 650.00

Great Oaks Landscaping, Inc. 4253 11/14/23 260.00

70-0-5750 Landscaping Inv 18121 260.00

GUY SCOPELLITI LANDSCAPE 4254 11/14/23 1,834.10

70-0-5750 Landscaping Inv 43351 1,834.10

Illinois Office of the State Fire Marshal 4255 11/14/23 125.00

70-0-5749 Elevators Inv 5125139952 125.00

Jessica McClure 4256 11/14/23 127.00

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Elf on the Shelf - Remainder 127.00

Jo Ann Tufo 4257 11/14/23 200.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Presenter 200.00

Kaleen Elizabeth Dolan 4258 11/14/23 300.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Holiday Piano Show 300.00

Kelly Dull 4259 11/14/23 300.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Holiday Cookie Decorating 300.00

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

14



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

Lynn Rymarz 4260 11/14/23 300.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Presenter 300.00

Makity Make 4261 11/14/23 555.00

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Ceramic Ornaments 555.00

Mikayla Contreras 4262 11/14/23 305.67

10-0-5114 Professional Development Food Reimbursement 19.40

10-0-5114 Professional Development October Travel Exp. Reimbursement 286.27

Monica Dombrowski 4263 11/14/23 283.45

10-0-5114 Professional Development Oct. Travel Exp. Reimbursment 283.45

Our Music LLC 4264 11/14/23 1,500.00

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Children's Concert 750.00

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Kid's Concert 750.00

Presidio Networked Solutions Group, LLC 4265 11/14/23 1,348.84

10-0-5885 Computer Equipment Inv 6053523000759 1,348.84

Raul Negrete Moyo 4266 11/14/23 1,435.00

70-0-5740 Snow Removal Magnesium Chloride Salt 1,435.00

Sydney Clark 4267 11/14/23 67.25

10-0-5138 Delivery Service
Sept/Oct. Travel Exp.
Reimbursement

6.82

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Reimbursement 13.93

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Sept/Oct. Travel Exp.
Reimbursement

46.50

Technology Management Rev Fund 4268 11/14/23 450.00

10-0-5176 Internet Services Inv T2405445 450.00

The Book Stall 4269 11/14/23 286.74

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Inv 492127 51.20

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Inv 491115 101.20

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Inv 489147 19.96

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Inv 489968 26.39

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

Inv 489968 48.00

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

Inv 489286 26.39

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

Inv 492127 13.60

U.S. Postal Service 4270 11/14/23 941.86

10-0-5722 Newsletter/Mailers Acct 1005722 941.86

ULINE 4271 11/14/23 69.54

10-0-5120 Library Supplies Inv 170063546 69.54

Wall Street Journal 4272 11/14/23 659.88

10-1-5342 Periodicals-Winnetka Acct 030994042479 659.88

Women in History 4273 11/14/23 200.00

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

15



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Presenter 200.00

Printing Concepts 4274 11/16/23 660.00

10-0-5120 Library Supplies INV #155224 660.00

American Library Association 4275 11/30/23 360.00

10-0-5731 Memberships Public Library Assoc. Benchmark 360.00

Annie Chu 4276 11/30/23 118.69

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Annie Chu 52.20

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Annie Chu 32.50

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Annie Chu 19.98

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Annie Chu 14.01

Catapult 4277 11/30/23 50.00

10-0-5115 Flexible Spending Account Inv 00139319 50.00

CCI Solutions 4278 11/30/23 187.28

10-0-5120 Library Supplies Inv 30464955 187.28

Cheryl Brown 4279 11/30/23 250.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Program Instructor 250.00

Colley Elevator Co. 4280 11/30/23 58,730.40

70-0-5749 Elevators
Elevator Moderinzaton Project
09.01.23 - 09.30.23

58,730.40

Dan Rosa 4281 11/30/23 550.00

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Instructor Fee 550.00

Esscoe L.L.C. 4282 11/30/23 11,022.00

10-0-5882 Building Inv 62067 3,594.20

10-0-5882 Building Inv 61615 7,427.80

Funny Valentine Press 4283 11/30/23 225.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Instructor Fee 225.00

Isabel Raci 4284 11/30/23 415.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Instructor Fee 415.00

Jo Ann Tufo 4285 11/30/23 200.00

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult Presenter Fee 200.00

Kerry Rogers 4286 11/30/23 48.32

10-0-4150 Lost/Damaged Materials Returned Books 48.32

Library Ideas, LLC 4287 11/30/23 3,428.16

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Inv 103819 1,647.60

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Inv 103821 261.12

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Inv 103820 692.88

10-1-5444
Audio Books-Juv-
Winnetka

Inv 103822 826.56

Team One Repair, Inc. 4288 11/30/23 211.00

10-0-5120 Library Supplies Inv 1489381 211.00

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

16



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

The Book Stall 4289 11/30/23 105.59

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Inv 493220 30.40

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Inv 494205 23.99

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

Inv 493220 25.60

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

Inv 494401 25.60

WunderWash - HouseWash 4290 11/30/23 2,500.00

10-0-5882 Building Inv -000058 2,500.00

Midwest Tape 17911 11/02/23 571.11

10-1-5443 DVDs-Juv-Winnetka 504068421 9.99

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka 504513727 286.37

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka 504513821 120.25

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504513726 13.93

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504513727 25.87

10-0-5120 Library Supplies Credit - 504379680 -149.87

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504513821 9.95

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504513728 1.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504513820 3.98

10-2-5343 DVDs-Adult-Northfield 504513820 45.73

10-2-5343 DVDs-Adult-Northfield 504513726 167.93

10-1-5344
Audio Books-Adult-
Winnetka

504513728 34.99

Baker & Taylor 17912 11/02/23 8,056.73

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037820090 1,025.63

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037868536 425.37

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037822531 523.80

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037838762 16.94

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037861304 460.21

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037838955 445.15

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037865565 462.31

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037865565 159.37

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037838955 72.68

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037861304 174.55

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037822531 59.01

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037820090 405.63

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037868536 44.84

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037865445 214.32

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037869001 246.27

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037838762 100.70

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

17



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037851270 357.65

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037861544 450.76

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037861544 179.19

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037851270 189.65

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037865445 302.14

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037869001 49.15

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037836038 166.15

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037834523 24.48

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037841509 159.79

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037835698 371.72

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037834520 14.24

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037834521 14.24

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037834522 90.64

10-2-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

2037836038 13.72

10-2-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

2037835698 38.19

10-2-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

2037834519 101.18

10-2-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

2037834518 29.98

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037834519 11.97

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037834520 1.47

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037834522 10.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037834521 1.89

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037834518 3.79

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037834523 2.13

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037841509 22.54

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037838762 9.51

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037836038 56.04

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037822531 37.14

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037851270 46.73

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037865565 43.01

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037838955 40.07

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037835698 80.73

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037861304 52.33

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037861544 53.93

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037865445 51.82

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037820090 79.45

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037869001 25.65

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037868536 35.89

RAILS 17913 11/02/23 685.00

10-0-5177 Website/Platform Fees Inv 11736 685.00

VALUE LINE PUBLISHING LLC 17914 11/02/23 6,200.00

10-1-5346
Online Database -
Winnetka

Inv KF-759040-2311 6,200.00

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

18



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

Midwest Tape 17927 11/17/23 1,337.56

10-1-5443 DVDs-Juv-Winnetka 504068421 -9.99

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka 504614141 167.93

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka 504614142 80.97

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka 504542012 77.96

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka 504542013 23.24

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka 504542014 29.99

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka 504542018 113.96

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka 504579798 43.48

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka 504579981 29.24

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka 504614077 55.48

10-1-5343 DVDs-Adult-Winnetka 504614078 22.49

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504579799 1.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504579981 1.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504614075 1.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504579982 1.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504614140 7.96

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504614079 5.97

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504614078 1.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504614077 3.98

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504542016 1.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504542015 1.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504542014 1.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504542013 1.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504542017 5.97

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504542018 11.94

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504579797 1.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504579798 3.98

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504541859 3.98

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504542011 3.98

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504542012 7.96

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504614143 1.99

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504614142 5.97

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 504614141 13.93

10-2-5343 DVDs-Adult-Northfield 504614079 74.97

10-2-5343 DVDs-Adult-Northfield 504614140 110.21

10-2-5343 DVDs-Adult-Northfield 504579982 20.24

10-2-5343 DVDs-Adult-Northfield 504579797 29.99

10-2-5343 DVDs-Adult-Northfield 504542017 56.98

10-2-5343 DVDs-Adult-Northfield 504542011 37.48

10-2-5343 DVDs-Adult-Northfield 504614143 7.49

10-1-5344
Audio Books-Adult-
Winnetka

504541859 89.98

10-1-5344
Audio Books-Adult-
Winnetka

504542015 42.99

10-1-5344
Audio Books-Adult-
Winnetka

504542016 34.99

10-1-5344
Audio Books-Adult-
Winnetka

504614075 64.99

10-1-5344
Audio Books-Adult-
Winnetka

504579799 34.99

Baker & Taylor 17928 11/17/23 8,585.97

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037850525 265.97

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037904557 276.91

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

19



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037904684 16.94

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037904557 107.35

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037850525 324.31

10-1-5441
Books-Non-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037852939 195.90

10-2-5441
Books-Non-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

2037852939 64.29

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037879605 241.81

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037882773 234.59

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037890219 936.58

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037895248 222.25

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037898087 385.63

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037907203 316.22

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037904684 439.00

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037912425 279.54

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

2037915578 347.02

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037912425 218.96

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037915578 205.36

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037904684 127.44

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037907203 127.39

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037898087 183.91

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037895248 99.38

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037882773 310.06

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037890219 168.41

10-2-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

2037879605 186.05

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037862720 66.06

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037901603 926.88

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037858457 13.49

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037858458 201.85

10-1-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

2037858459 33.23

10-2-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

2037858456 48.70

10-2-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

2037901603 218.76

10-2-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

2037862720 22.02

10-2-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

2037858455 2.97

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

20



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-2-5440
Books-Fiction-Juv-
Northfield

2037880612 24.97

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037890219 95.42

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037882773 41.04

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037879605 37.55

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037915578 45.91

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037912425 43.78

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037907203 40.90

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037904684 59.96

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037898087 49.36

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037901603 180.73

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037904557 28.15

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037858456 6.62

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037858457 2.09

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037858459 3.85

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037858458 24.92

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037862720 11.81

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037852939 10.35

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037858455 2.94

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037880612 4.14

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037895248 28.35

10-0-5120 Library Supplies 2037850525 27.90

Childrens Plus 17929 11/17/23 1,445.15

10-1-5441
Books-Non-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

236937 959.75

10-1-5441
Books-Non-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

236972 485.40

MERCHANTS DELIVERY SERVICE 17930 11/17/23 550.00

10-0-5138 Delivery Service 10/2023 Book Transfers 550.00

Warehouse Direct 17931 11/17/23 1,954.16

70-0-5725 Janitorial Supplies Inv 5608666-0 825.98

70-0-5782 Equipment Inv 5599944-0 1,128.18

QUILL CORPORATION 17932 11/17/23 268.82

10-0-5122 Breakroom Supplies Inv 35428586 41.86

10-0-5122 Breakroom Supplies Inv 35360885 36.95

10-0-5122 Breakroom Supplies Inv 35605016 19.34

10-0-5120 Library Supplies Inv 35465170 128.99

10-0-5121 Office Supplies Inv 35605016 6.32

10-0-5121 Office Supplies Inv 35451480 35.36

RingCentral Inc 17933 11/17/23 302.70

10-0-5175 Telephone Inv CD_000683189 302.70

CDW-G 17934 11/17/23 366.28

10-0-5136 Hardware Inv MT68155 366.28

DEMCO 17935 11/17/23 120.51

10-0-5308 Reading Programs Inv 7395861 65.43

10-0-5120 Library Supplies Inv 7390608 55.08

OVERDRIVE INC. 17936 11/17/23 23,246.00

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv 01018MA23398712 4,240.54

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv 01018MA23402761 7,019.57

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

21



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv 0101BCP23400373 11,985.89

HOOPLA (MIDWEST TAPE) 17937 11/17/23 2,064.63

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv 504576515 2,064.63

Kanopy 17938 11/17/23 629.00

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv 373152 629.00

VILLAGE OF NORTHFIELD 17939 11/17/23 5,682.42

70-2-5159 Northfield Lease Nov. 23 Lease Payment 5,682.42

Peerless Network 17940 11/30/23 41.14

10-1-5175 Telephone - Winnetka Inv 36579 41.14

Ntiva 17941 11/17/23 2,951.91

10-0-5135 LAN Management Inv 221414 2,951.91

BIBLIOTHECA, LLC 17942 11/17/23 487.40

10-1-5345 Books-Digital-Winnetka Inv US70391 487.40

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 17943 11/17/23 1,725.00

10-0-5131
Accounting and
Bookkeeping

Inv 84681 1,725.00

DD Facility Services 17944 11/17/23 8,500.00

70-0-5748
Building Maintenance
Service

Inv 0718-0024 8,000.00

10-0-5882 Building Inv 0718-0024 500.00

VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 17945 11/17/23 29,401.11

10-0-5111 Health Insurance Inv 2023-00000012 29,401.11

DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIALSVCS. 17946 11/17/23 3,736.94

10-0-5766 Photocopier Leases INV ##81181335 1,868.47

10-0-5766 Photocopier Leases INV #80942251 1,868.47

DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF ILLINOIS 17947 11/17/23 1,469.84

10-0-5111 Health Insurance INV #1734873 1,469.84

COMCAST 17956 11/30/23 71.95

10-0-5176 Internet Services 10.11.23 - 11-10.23 71.95

NORTH SHORE GAS 17957 11/30/23 299.09

10-1-5174 Natural Gas - Winnetka 09.20.23 - 10.19.23 299.09

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS 17958 11/30/23 1,475.00

10-0-2040 457 withholding
NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT
SOLUTIONS

1,475.00

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS 17959 11/30/23 1,475.00

10-0-2040 457 withholding
NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT
SOLUTIONS

1,475.00

COMCAST 17960 11/30/23 339.95

10-0-5176 Internet Services 10.20.23 - 11.19.23 339.95

NICOR 17961 11/30/23 83.73

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

22



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-2-5174 Natural Gas - Northfield 08.23.23 - 09.22.23 83.73

PITNEY BOWES 17962 11/30/23 100.00

10-0-5123 Postage PITNEY BOWES 100.00

VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 17963 11/30/23 2,926.53

10-1-5171 Electricity - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 65.15

10-1-5171 Electricity - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 2,538.49

10-1-5171 Electricity - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA -249.60

10-1-5171 Electricity - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 53.25

10-1-5172 Water - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 91.77

10-1-5172 Water - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 71.74

10-1-5172 Water - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 2.00

10-1-5172 Water - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 196.16

10-1-5172 Water - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 24.41

10-1-5173 Storm Sewer - Winnetka VILLAGE OF WINNETKA 133.16

COMED 17964 11/30/23 624.59

10-2-5171 Electricity - Northfield 10.13.13 - 11.13.23 624.59

VILLAGE OF NORTHFIELD 17965 11/30/23 41.43

10-2-5172 Water - Northfield 09.21.23 - 10.19.23 41.43

First Bankcard 17966 11/30/23 13,597.38

10-0-5122 Breakroom Supplies
Morgan - breakroom supplies-dish
drainer mat

6.49

10-0-5123 Postage
Mall - Refund for 9/18 mailing labels
order

-14.08

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - Screenprinting ink 23.98

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Kline - Induction cooktop for Sandy
programs

56.53

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Kline - Peppers for Sandy induction
prog

32.27

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - Bulk oil for dispenser progs 15.06

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - Laserable Acrylic 102.58

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Kline - Cardstock and blank jewelry
pieces

26.94

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - Pan for Prog 38.24

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - Wine glasses for engraving 36.60

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - UV Light for Resin progs 14.39

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - USB drives for studio 57.98

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - Wood blanks 37.98

10-1-5439 Kits Karwowska - Kits - replacement parts 43.93

10-1-5439 Kits Karwowska - Kits - replacement parts 22.99

10-1-5439 Kits Karwowska - Kits - replacement parts -39.99

10-1-5439 Kits Karwowska - Kits - replacement parts 39.99

10-1-5439 Kits Karwowska - Kits - replacement parts 24.98

10-1-5439 Kits Karwowska - Kits - replacement parts 44.99

10-1-5455
Karwowska - Youth
Videogames

First Bankcard 128.99

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Mall - Materials 31.76

10-1-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Mall - Materials 42.03

10-2-5341
Books-Non-Fiction-Adult-
Northfield

Morgan - adult collection
development-IL Rules of the Road

33.66

10-1-5441
Books-Non-Fiction-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - youth nf gn 14.99

10-0-5134 Software Mall - Virtual event hosting 127.97

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

23



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-0-5134 Software Swenson  - Office 365 Entra 7.20

10-0-5134 Software Swenson  - Power BI 30.00

10-0-5134 Software Swenson  - Office 365 Licenses 192.50

10-0-5134 Software
Swenson  - Creative Cloud
Subscription

295.90

10-0-5134 Software
Swenson  - Annual Signage
Subscription

117.60

10-0-5134 Software
White - WhenIWork Scheduling
Software

90.00

10-0-5134 Software
Swenson  - Annual LastPass Teams
Subscription

432.00

10-0-5136 Hardware
Swenson  - Power Adapter for
Silhouette

12.99

10-0-5136 Hardware Swenson  - Power Adapter for RFID 12.98

10-0-5177 Website/Platform Fees
Swenson  - Old Website/Backup +
New Content Site

34.00

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supplies 32.29

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supplies 376.26

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supplies 178.10

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supplies 63.38

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supplies 16.88

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supplies 194.42

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supplies 7.98

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supplies 9.92

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Paid Performers 1,200.00

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supplies 63.47

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supplies - WBK 45.99

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supplies 84.78

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supples 53.86

10-0-5907 Programming - Youth Karwowska - Youth Supplies 31.36

10-0-5908 Programming - Adult
Mall - Programming supplies (prize
for Horror Trivia, 10/27)

63.22

10-0-5308 Reading Programs
Quish - Book Recommendations/1K
Books

242.22

10-0-5308 Reading Programs
Quish - Insulated mugs/Winter
Reading

1,900.00

10-0-5308 Reading Programs Mall - Winter Reading prizes 50.00

10-0-5308 Reading Programs Mall - Winter Reading prizes 50.00

10-0-5308 Reading Programs Mall - Winter Reading prizes 50.00

10-0-5308 Reading Programs Karwowska - Winter Reading prizes 39.98

10-0-5308 Reading Programs
Karwowska - Winter Reading youth
prizes

110.97

10-0-5308 Reading Programs Karwowska - Winter Reading prizes 239.86

10-0-5308 Reading Programs Karwowska - Winter Reading prizes 170.20

10-0-5721 Promotional
Swenson  - Insulated mugs/Winter
Reading

387.01

10-0-5721 Promotional Swenson  - Stress balls/outreach 853.13

10-1-5342 Periodicals-Winnetka Mall - Mailing labels 15.42

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Videogame
reimbursement

-0.50

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 49.99

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 59.99

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 49.94

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 29.99

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 49.99

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

24



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames -0.01

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 49.94

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames -0.11

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 39.94

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 59.99

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames -0.11

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames -0.47

10-1-5445
Video Games-Juv-
Winnetka

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 29.99

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 29.99

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 128.99

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames -0.47

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames -0.11

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 59.99

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 39.94

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames -0.11

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 49.94

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames -0.01

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 49.99

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 29.99

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 49.94

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 59.99

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Youth Videogames 49.99

10-2-5445
Video Games- Juv-
Northfield

Karwowska - Videogame
reimbursement

-0.50

10-0-5723 PR Supplies Swenson  - Mailing Tube/Supplies 37.53

10-0-5731 Memberships Kline - MC ILA Membership 100.00

10-0-5732
Staff
Recognition/Events/Meeti
ngs

White - All-Staff Meeting Breakfast 487.00

70-0-5725 Janitorial Supplies Karwowska - Cleaning Supplies 51.60

70-0-5725 Janitorial Supplies White - Aunt Flow Dispenser Refills 420.00

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Mall - Materials 43.50

10-1-5340
Books-Fiction-Adult-
Winnetka

Mall - Materials 91.17

10-0-5120 Library Supplies
Morgan - library supplies-bags for
intralibrary delivery

123.95

70-0-5750 Landscaping Mall - Bird food 24.66

70-0-5782 Equipment
Morgan - coupon savings, building
equipment-air purifier

-15.00

70-0-5782 Equipment Morgan - library supplies-magnfier 23.99

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

25



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number
Check
Date

Check
Amount

70-0-5782 Equipment
Morgan - building equipment-air
purifier

99.99

10-0-5882 Building White - Emergency Exit Signage 6.99

10-0-5884 Equipment/Furniture
Kline - Air Purifier for space (elevator
repair)

299.99

10-0-5114 Professional Development Dombrowski - ILA Legislative Meetup 45.00

10-0-5114 Professional Development First Bankcard 25.49

10-0-5114 Professional Development Kline - ILA Conference Ticket 300.00

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Morgan - professional development-
Kathryn Freemond

100.00

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Mall - Professional Development -
Adult Reading Round Table event

100.00

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Mall - Professional Development -
Adult Reading Round Table event

100.00

10-0-5114 Professional Development
White - Staff Anti-Harassment
Training

1,050.00

10-0-5114 Professional Development
Morgan - professional development-
Sydney Clark

100.00

10-0-5121 Office Supplies
Morgan - office supplies-pencil
sharpener

19.99

10-0-5121 Office Supplies Kline - Planner, Blanks, Stapler 61.77

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - Liner for fabrics 22.14

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - screwdriver set 19.98

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - Fabric for prog 4.97

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - blank tumblers for 11/9 prog 57.43

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - oil dispenser blanks 18.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio
Kline - Phone mount for YouTube
videos

22.99

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - Banners for Prog 21.56

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - Filament for 3d prints 49.98

10-0-5906 Programming - Studio Kline - String Lights for Prog 8.49

Check List Total 227,347.17

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

Check Register
All Bank Accounts

November 1, 2023 - November 30, 2023

26



 
 

 
 
NOVEMBER 2023 DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
STAFF UPDATES 

Anniversaries: Maddy Belk, Youth Services Librarian, 11/11 (4 years); Jeremy Farrar, Social Media & Marketing 
Specialist, 11/15 (1 year). 

Promotions & Comings: Jeremy Farrar (see above) was promoted to FT effective 11/20. Former New Trier 
Student Volunteer Matty Schulz was hired as a PT Page for the Winnetka Library effective 11/30.  
 
STAFF SHOUT OUTS 

• Youth Services Librarian Amber wrote an article on 1,000 Books Before Kindergarten that was featured in 
The Alliance for Early Childhood’s eNewsletter. 

• Director Monica was nominated to run for the Public Library Association’s Board of Directors. The election 
will occur in the spring and if elected, she will serve a 3-year term beginning July 1, 2024. 

 
FINANCES (Target = 41.67% based on 5 months into our fiscal year) 

• We are at 22.71% of our expected operating revenues (below budget). 
• We are at 35.02% of our budgeted operating expenses (below budget). 
 
PROGRAMMING 

Youth  
Category 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
Programs 56 53 5.66% 259 290 -10.69% 
Live Attendees 1,588 1,194 33.00% 7,394 5,481 34.90% 
Passive Programming 4,661 2,143 117.50% 19,592 9,244 111.94% 

 
Highlights 

Bluey Party 49 patrons entered play scenes—such as zoo, restaurant, hairdresser, and 
hospital—from their favorite show.  

Family Reading Night In collaboration with Alliance for Early Childhood, we offered fort 
building and family reading at both branches for 53 patrons.  

DiNovember Dinosaur Dig 20 patrons got together to talk about—and dig for—dinosaur “fossils”. 
 
Adults  

Category 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
Programs 15 16 -6.25% 87 101 -13.86% 
Live Attendees 417 425 -1.88% 2,152 2,032 5.91% 
Recording Attendees 198 164 20.73% 1,382 673 105.35% 

 
Highlights 
Relaxing Watercolors (IP) 20 patrons came to slow down, relax, and learn watercolor techniques 

from Audrey Ra of Audrey Ra Designs while creating their own works. 

27

https://theallianceforec.org/blog/1000-books-before-kindergarten


Bombshells: Hollywood’s Leading 
Ladies (V) 

Film Historian Dr. Annette Bochenek presented the history of the 
Hollywood bombshells & their legacies for 78 patrons. 

Native American Storytelling by 
Chief White Winnebago (IP) 

HoChunk Nation Chief Winnebago told 5 interactive Native American 
stories for 27 patrons of all ages.  

(IP)= In-Person Program    (V)=Virtual Program 
 
Studio 

Category 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
1:1s 285 82 247.56% 1,409 488 188.73% 
Programs 18 11 63.34% 79 74 6.76% 
Attendees 67 86 -22.09% 486 489 -0.61% 

 
Highlights 

Multi-Layer Winter Scene Using the laser engraver, colored acrylic, & fairy lights, 6 patrons made custom 
light-up winter decorations for their homes or gifts.  

Thanksgiving Banners Using the vinyl cutter, heat press, and templates, 6 patrons made custom 
decorative banners to hang or display near their holiday tables.  

 
Community Engagement 

Category 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
Youth Events 0 1 -100.00% 11 13 -15.38% 
Adult Events 2 2 0.00% 24 10 140.00% 
Family Events 2 1 100.00% 8 14 -42.36% 

Total Events 4 4 0.00% 43 37 16.22% 
Youth Attendance 0 12 -100.00% 345 522 -33.91% 
Adult Attendance 20 16 25.0% 486 95 411.58% 
Family Attendance 125 100 25.00% 1,425 1,383 3.04% 

Total Attendance 145 128 13.28% 2,256 2,000 12.80% 

 
Highlights 

Family Campfire Youth Services Manager Anna shared campfire stories at Crow Island Woods Park 
for 40 residents. In partnership with the Winnetka Park District. 

Holiday Fest Librarians Sydney & Amelia shared Winter Reading Info, a holiday scavenger hunt, 
holiday buttons, and holiday-themed books with 85 residents. In partnership with 
the Northfield Park District. 

 
SERVICES 

Visitors 
Building 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
Winnetka 10,857 8,909 21.87% 53,436 44,701 19.54% 
Northfield 4,135 3,206 28.98% 21,206 17,101 24.00% 

Total  14,992 12,115 23.75% 74,642 61,802 20.78% 
Virtual 280 361 -22.44% 1,387 1,465 -5.32% 

Total 15,272 12,476 22.41% 76,029 63,267 20.17% 
Note: Closed at 5pm on 11/22 and all day on 11/23 & 24 for Thanksgiving holiday.    
 

28



 
  

 
Cardholders 

Activity 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
New Cards 97 104 -6.73% 526 578 -9.00% 
Community 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- 23NOV%POP 22NOV %POP % Change 
Winnetka 6,324 6,549 -3.44% 49.62% 51.39% -1.77% 
Northfield 2,411 2,203 9.44% 41.92% 38.31% 3.62% 

Total District 8,735 8,752 -0.19% 47.23% 47.32% -0.09% 
Kenilworth 400 334 19.76% 15.91% 13.29% 2.63% 
Total Library Cards 9,135 9,086 0.54% - - - 

 
Desk Questions 

Category 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY22-23 YTD FY21-22 YTD FY % +/- 

Adult 2,074 1,666 24.49% 11,653 10,758 8.32% 

Youth 510 704 -27.56% 2,456 3,453 -28.87% 

Digital Services 82 149 -44.97% 419 765 -45.23% 

Total 2,666 2,519 5.84% 14,528 14,976 -2.99% 

 
TECHNOLOGY 

Computer Usage 
Location 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
Winnetka 325 400 -12.00% 2,274 2,201 3.32% 
Northfield 210 223 -5.83% 1,143 1,094 4.48% 

Total 562 623 -9.79% 3,417 3,295 3.70% 
 
Hotspot Usage 

Location 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
Winnetka Sessions 23,246 19,526 19.05% 104,840 114,963 -8.81% 

29



Northfield Sessions 3,910 4,785 -18.29% 20,554 21,286 -3.44% 
Total  27,156 24,311 11.70% 125,394 136,249 -7.97% 

Winnetka Bandwidth 607GB 479GB 26.72% 2,843GB 2,397GB 18.59% 
Northfield Bandwidth 116GB 77GB 49.30% 540GB 348GB 55.43% 

Total  723GB 556GB 29.86% 3,383GB 2,745GB 23.26% 
 
Website Visits 

Activity 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
Total Visits 10,512 9,252 13.62% 55,083 43,377 26.99% 
Unique Visits 6,553 6,381 2.70% 34,245 28,208 21.40% 

 
MARKETING 

Email Subscribers  
23NOV               % Cardholders 22NOV Open Rate Click Rate 
10,740 117.57% 10,373 56% 2% 

Open Rate: % who opened the email. Click Rate: % who clicked on links inside the email.  
 
Social Media Activity 

Platform 
23NOV   
Impres. 

22NOV 
Impres. 

Mo. % 
+/- 

23NOV             
Reach 

22NOV              
Reach 

Mo.              
%  
+/- 

23NOV  
Engage. 

22NOV 
Engage. 

Mo. 
% 
+/- 

YouTube 25,063 - - 1,360 - - - - - 

Facebook 4,723 - - 4,613 - - 71 - - 

Instagram 4,716 - - 4,608 - - 71 - - 

Twitter/X 2,558 - - - - - 151 - - 

LinkedIn 510 - - - - - 57 - - 

Total 37,570 - - 10,581 - - 350 - - 
Impressions: # of times the content has been seen/viewed. Reach: # of people seeing content for the first time. 
Engagements: # of comments, likes, shares, & click-throughs.  

COLLECTIONS 

Physical Adult (By Location) 
Location 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
Winnetka 9,578 9,011 6.29% 51,296 47,456 8.09% 
Northfield 3,538 3,960 -10.66% 19,109 20,928 -8.69% 

Physical Youth (By Location) 
Location 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
Winnetka 14,055 14,543 -3.36% 72,889 72,074 1.13% 
Northfield 3,229 3,835 -15.80% 16,617 19,986 -16.86% 

Physical Miscellaneous 
Lending Type 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
Kenilworth Patrons 899 1,092 -17.67% 5,870 5,633 4.21% 
Borrowed from Other Libraries 1,718 1,547 11.05% 8,599 8,240 4.36% 

 

30



Physical Adult (By Type) 
Material Type 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
Books 7,755 8,224 -5.70% 43,378 43,699 0.73% 
 Book - Fiction 4,390 4,590 -4.36% 25,496 24,978 2.07% 
 Book - Nonfiction 3,365 3,634 -7.40% 17,882 18,721 -4.48% 
Audiobook - CD 194 278 -30.22% 1,137 1,616 -29.64% 
Music CD 114 93 22.58% 409 721 -43.27% 
Playaway 25 31 -19.35% 149 282 -47.16% 
DVD/Blu-Ray 2,612 2,818 -7.31% 13,108 13,618 -3.75% 
Magazine 276 186 48.39% 1,207 1,061 13.76% 
Videogame 20 18 11.11% 95 118 -19.49% 
Computing Device 3 5 -40.00% 25 20 25.00% 
Library of Things 28 28 0.00% 109 83 31.33% 
Other 4 - - 11 53 -79.25% 
Non-CCS ILL 20 35 -42.86% 146 191 -23.56% 
Sent Out 2,065 1,277 61.71% 10,631 6,922 53.58% 

Total 13,116 12,993 0.95% 70,405 68,384 2.96% 
 
Physical Youth (By Type) 

Material Type 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY22-23 YTD FY % +/- 
Books 12,612 13,930 -9.46% 68,152 70,252 -3.03% 
 Book - Fiction 10,652 11,658 8.63% 57,607 60,116 -4.17% 
 Book - Nonfiction 1,960 2,272 -13.73% 10,545 10,166 3.73% 
Audiobook - CD 4 22 -81.82% 29 128 -77.34% 
Playaway 183 216 -15.28% 1,260 1,230 2.44% 
DVD/Blu-Ray 687 972 -29.32% 4,014 5,402 -25.69% 
Videogame 206 189 8.99% 1,236 1,231 0.41% 
Computing Device 97 29 234.48% 317 170 86.47% 
Vox Reader 356 277 28.52% 1,696 1,487 14.06% 
Youth Kits 62 57 8.77% 334 226 47.79% 
Other 27 51 -47.06% 105 158 -33.54% 
In House Circulation 3,049 2,576 18.36% 12,361 11,654 6.07% 

Total 17,284 18,345 -5.78% 89,506 92,124 -2.84% 

MTD Total Physical Circulation 
23NOV Physical Circulation 22NOV Physical Circulation Net Change 

30,400 31,316 -2.93% 
   

YTD Total Physical Circulation 
FY23-24 YTD Physical Circulation FY22-23 YTD Physical Circulation Net Change 

159,911 160,508 -0.37% 

 

 

 
31



 

Digital Circulation 
Material Type 23NOV 22NOV Mo. % +/- FY23-24 YTD FY21-22 YTD FY % +/- 
eBooks 4,498 3,870 16.23% 22,204 19,981 11.13% 
eAudiobooks 4,043 2,962 36.50% 19,478 15,231 27.88% 
eMagazines* 2,701 1,520 77.17% 7,878 7,213 9.22% 
eVideos 403 429 -6.06% 2,339 2,011 16.31% 
eMusic 42 35 20.00% 231 141 63.83% 

Total 11,687 8,816 32.57% 52,138 44,577 16.96% 
*Vendor made a change & now auto delivers new issues of eMags to those with a copy checked out. 
 

 
 
 
 

32



 
MTD Total District Circulation 

23NOV District Circulation 22NOV District Circulation Net Change 
42,087 40,165 4.79% 

 
YTD Total District Circulation 

FY23-24 YTD District Circulation FY22-23 YTD District Circulation Net Change 
212,049 205,021 3.34% 

 

 
 
 
IMPACT STORIES 
Branch Services 
• Library Assistant Mark W. helped a patron use the library’s computer and printer to renew her passport. 

His instruction was so thorough that the patron said she now feels confident enough to use the equipment 
on her own. 

• A patron expressed her gratitude for the ability to borrow DVDs for her husband, who has Alzheimer’s. 
While embarrassed to admit it, she said DVDs are an integral part of her “babysitting system.” 

• Librarian Amelia assisted a teacher from Brightmont Academy by recommending beginning chapter and 
emerging graphic novel titles for a teen with low-reading level. The teacher emailed her appreciation: 
“Thank you so much…I really appreciate the help!! This student will be able to understand story sequencing 
because of you...thank you.” 

• Feedback from comment box: “I love this library! You give such care to new fiction, displays, 
recommendations. I can always find something here,” and “What a nice, curated collection! You take such care. 
I will definitely be back.” 

Community Engagement 
• Small Business Saturday was an enormous success! We transitioned from having just a youth 

performer/program, as had been done in previous years (which was normally fully registered before the 
day of the event), to offering something for everyone! There was a used book sale in the lobby to benefit 
the Friends of the Library, the Studio had crafts and demonstrations of equipment/Library of Things, and 
youth had Winter Wonderland activities for families in the Lloyd Room. The library was also one of the 

33



clues for the Winnetka Park District’s Scavenger Hunt, highlighting our lobby exhibit with the Winnetka 
Historical Society. These activities drew new people into the library, as evidenced by the 14 new library 
card signups that day. It is a great collaboration for us with the Village of Winnetka, the Park District 
(scavenger hunt), and other local businesses/organizations.  

Youth Services 
• Feedback on Take-and-Tinker Kits: “Anna, when I say ‘you saved thanksgiving’, it’s not hyperbole.  I had

three kids 5-8 having simultaneous meltdowns, but I remembered I had take-and-tinker-kits from the youth
services department, and everyone has officially calmed down.  THANK YOU, THANK YOU.  Please let the
volunteers and your whole youth services staff know how important they all are to the MacNally family, and ALL
the families of the district.”

• Feedback on Offerings: “Thank you, I came in just wanting to get books but we did two scavenger hunts and
did some crafting.  This has been a wonderful Saturday and it’s not even 11:00 yet!”

• Feedback on Programming: “We really appreciate you and all this amazing work you put into these programs
for our kids. We love coming here and you are just so good at this.”

• A women called and requested assistance with figuring out if the book Unicorns and Mermaids: A Sticker
Book had any controversial content because her friend had gone on a “tirade” about it. After comparing
her research to Librarian Amber’s, she was delighted and relieved to find that there appeared to be nothing
of concern with the title.

• Maddy had two parents at the last baby story time say that they really love the community of new parents
who’ve been coming to story time! One of them said she’s been coming every week during the fall session
and it’s helped her to make friends with other moms!

Adult Services 
• Feedback on Winnetka Talk Digital Archive

o A patron called to see if we could find an image of her brother as a small child published in the
Winnetka Talk in the early 60s. They both remembered the image and hoped to include it in a personal
memoir for friends and family. We were able to quickly locate the image using the Winnetka Talk
Historical Archive. The patron replied: “Thank you for your wonderful help! My whole family will be
thrilled to see this photo. I am most grateful for your assistance and kindness.”

o A patron stopped by the Reference Desk to comment on how much he enjoyed searching through the
Winnetka Talk Historical Archive. His family has lived in Winnetka for more than 100 years, and he
was able to find many previously unknown pictures of and references to family members that he then
shared with them.

o Molly sent a patron 26 archived Winnetka Talk articles pertaining to the patron’s family and ancestors.
This patron lives in another state now and can’t visit the Library. The patron’s response: “Molly, your
kindness overwhelms me!  Yes, all of these articles pertain to my family. My sibs and cousins were the last
generation to grow up in Winnetka and we have all scattered around the country, but Winnetka holds a
special place in our hearts. I spent hundreds of hours in the library, and I am sure your skills and kindness
are enjoyed by many Winnetka residents. Thanks so much.”

• Feedback for Brave The Wild River - The Women Who Mapped The Grand Canyon's Plants: “I thought the
speaker was outstanding -- she delivered a wonderful, interesting presentation with great visuals. Her story of
the women running the Colorado river was so compelling and I'm glad she wrote a book so more people can
learn about them. I'm so glad I zoomed in. Please let the library director know that this was yet another
phenomenal program.”

• Feedback for Native American Storytelling by Chief White Winnebago: “Probably learned more about Native
American history/culture/concepts in 60 minutes than I learned in all my school years,” and, “I love the

34



information that was shared and was so glad to have participated in this event. I really enjoy learning about 
other cultures and learning about things I had not known before. Keep up the great work!” 

• Feedback for Mysteries and Mayhem on the North Shore: “Very interesting. I enjoy these webinars even
though I occasionally miss ones I signed up for. Sorry. This one will inspire me to check out more about my
house in the Winnetka historical society.”

Digital Services 
• Staff helped a patron use the 3D printer to create custom “feet” for his keyboard. He was so delighted at

how perfect they fit that he wrote a thank you note to the team!

• A patron who took Studio Assistant Annie’s
Wreath-Making Class sent her a photo of the
wreath displayed on her front door along with
a thank you note!

Patron Services 
• Patron Services Assistant Lisa helped two new

residents sign up for library cards. In the process,
she admired the hat of one of the residents,
which then led to a conversation about home
improvement stores and allowed Lisa to highlight
some of the options locally available in Winnetka.
The couple was thrilled with the interaction and
thanked Lisa, saying they hoped they run into her again!

• From a lobby survey: “I love the library! Thank you so much for being a space that I can always hang out in. I
would run out of reading material! Thank you!”

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 1 of 18 

Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries 
☒ = standard met

☒ = standard partially met but needs improvement

☐ = standard not met

Chapter 1 - Core Standards 
☒The library provides uniformly gracious, friendly, timely, and reliable service to all users.

☒The library is established and operates in compliance with Chapter 75 of the Illinois Compiled
Statutes.

☒The library is governed by a board of trustees elected or appointed and constituted in
compliance with the relevant sections of Chapter 75 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes.

☒The library complies with all other state and federal laws that affect library operations. (See
Appendix A)

☒The library adopts and adheres to the principles set forth in the American Library Association’s
(ALA) Library Bill of Rights and other ALA intellectual freedom statements and interpretations.

☒The library adopts and adheres to the Code of Ethics of the American Library Association. The
library adopts and adheres to the Public Library Trustee Ethics Statement, developed by United
for Libraries, a division of ALA. 

☒The board of trustees adopts written bylaws that outline the board’s purpose and operational
procedures and address conflict-of-interest issues.

☒The board of trustees appoints a qualified librarian as library administrator and delegates active
management of the library to the library administrator. (For the purposes of this document, a
qualified librarian is a person holding a Master of Library Science (MLS), Master Science in LIS, 
Master of Library and Information Science (MLIS), or other comparable degree from an ALA-
accredited program and/or actively participates in continuing education opportunities each 
year offered by the Illinois State Library, regional library systems, and the Illinois Library 
Association. Library boards and communities should strive to have a minimum of one staff 
member holding an ALA accredited master’s degree.) 

☒The board of trustees meets regularly, in accordance with the Illinois Compiled Statutes, with
the library administrator in attendance. All board meetings and board committee meetings
shall comply with the Open Meetings Act. 

☒The board of trustees has exclusive control of the expenditure of all monies collected, donated,
or appropriated for the library fund and all property owned by the library.

75



Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 2 of 18 

☒The library has a board-approved written budget. The budget is developed annually by the
library administrator and the board with input from the staff.

☒The board of trustees annually determines if the library’s revenues are sufficient to meet the
needs of the community. If the revenues are not sufficient, the board of trustees will take
action to increase the library’s revenues. 

☒The library has a board-approved mission statement, a long-range/strategic plan, disaster
prevention and recovery plan, collection management policy, personnel policy, technology
plan, and other policies as appropriate to the library’s operation and regularly updates and 
maintains them as appropriate.  

☒The library administrator presents written monthly reports, including statistics, on library
operations to the board of trustees. In addition, monthly fiscal reports are presented by the
library administrator and/or the library board treasurer. 

☒The board of trustees annually reviews the performance of the library administrator.

☒The library is a member of an Illinois regional library system, fulfills the membership
requirements of its system, is a responsible partner in the Illinois Library and Information
Network (ILLINET), and participates in resource sharing through interlibrary loan and 
reciprocal borrowing. 

☒The library provides access to resource sharing databases, participates in resource sharing by
entering the library’s collections into a regional, statewide, or national database, and actively
promotes resource sharing via interlibrary loan and reciprocal borrowing. 

☒The library utilizes a variety of methods to communicate with its community.

☒ The library is located in a facility designed or renovated for library purposes and complies with
all applicable local, state, and federal codes.  We need more exits & restrooms at Winnetka
but are grandfathered. Any additional remodels will require us to address these issues. 

☒A library is open a minimum of fifteen hours per week according to the Illinois Administrative
Code [23 Ill. Adm. Code 3030.110].

☒As a baseline, the library appropriates money to major budget categories (personnel, benefits,
library materials, other operating expenditures) using the Illinois Public Library Annual Report
statewide percentages analysis. 

☒The library board and staff promote the collections and services available to its community.

☒At least every five years, and more frequently, if necessary, the library conducts a review to
determine if the library is providing facilities, collections and services in a quantity, at a time,
and in a manner that meets the needs of the community. 

76



Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 3 of 18 

Chapter 2 - Governance and Administration 

☒Library has an elected or appointed board of trustees.

☒Library has a qualified library administrator.

☒Library administrator files an Illinois Public Library Annual Report (IPLAR) with the Illinois State
Library.

☒Library administrator prepares monthly reports (including statistics) of operations and services
for the board’s review.

☒Library administrator and/or library board treasurer prepares monthly fiscal reports for the
board’s review.

☒Library has a mission statement and a long-range/strategic plan.

☒Library maintains an understanding of the community by surveys, hearings, and other means.

☒Library board reviews library policies on a regular basis.

☒Library board members participate in local, state, regional, and national decision making that
will benefit libraries.

☒Library develops an orientation program for new board members.

☒Library board members attend local, regional, state, and national conferences pertinent to
libraries when fiscally possible.

☒Library keeps adequate records of library operations and follows proper procedures for disposal
of records.

☒Library complies and keeps current with appropriate Illinois and federal laws pertaining to
public libraries.

☒Library has a board-approved set of written by laws that govern the conduct of the board of
trustees and its relationship to the library and staff.

☒Library maintains insurance covering property and liability, including volunteer liability.

☒Library has a written succession plan focused on both internal and external talent development
to fill anticipated needs for library leadership and other key personnel.

77



Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 4 of 18 

Chapter 3 - Personnel 
☒Library has a board-approved personnel policy.

☒Library has staffing levels that are sufficient to carry out the library’s mission. We need to
continue to increase our bench strength to avoid service disruptions and staff burnout
resulting from illnesses and time off. 

☒Library has job descriptions and a salary schedule for all library positions. The job descriptions
and salary schedule are periodically reviewed and revised as needed.

☒Library’s hiring practices are in compliance with EEOC guidelines and the Americans with
Disabilities Act.

☒Library salaries and fringe benefits account for up to 70 percent of total operations budget. We
increased our Personnel expenditures from 52.8% of the operating budget to 54.9% of
the operating budget this year, which is a big improvement. We will continue to 
evaluate staffing on an annual basis as part of the budget forecasting process.  

☒Library gives each new employee a thorough orientation.

☒Library evaluates staff annually.

☒Library staff and administration attend local, regional, state, and national conferences as well as
training workshops and seminars where feasible.

☒Library provides staff access to library literature and other professional development materials.

☒Public library trustees and administrators are aware of federal, state, and local statutes and
regulations relevant to personnel administration.

☒The library complies with state and federal laws that affect library operations.

78



Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 5 of 18 

Chapter 4 - Access 
☒The library provides the right amount of space of the right kind to meet the provisions of its

long-range/strategic plan. We need more space, and a plan is in place to help us get it.

☒At least once every five years, the board directs a review of the library’s long-term space needs.

☒The staff are familiar with the requirements contained in the Americans with Disabilities Act
(ADA) and work to address deficiencies in order to provide universal access to all patrons.

☒The library, including branches or other service points, is located at a site that is determined to
be most convenient for the community.

☒The library provides adequate, safe, well-lit, and convenient parking during all hours of service.

☐The library has the minimum required number of parking spaces. We will never meet this
standard but adjacent neighborhood/public parking is available.

☒The library’s entrance is easily identified, clearly visible, and well lit.

☒The library has an identifying sign clearly visible from the street. Additional signs guide users
from arterial streets to the library. Winnetka signed installed this year but Northfield
Library signage still not visible from the street. Will be addressed as part of remodel. 

☒The library has adequate internal signage.

☒The library’s lighting levels comply with lighting standards.

☒All signage is in compliance with applicable federal, state, and local regulations.

☒The library building supports the implementation of current and future telecommunications and
electronic information technologies.

☒The library has sturdy and comfortable furnishings in sufficient quantity to meet user needs. We
have sturdy and comfortable furniture for the amount of space we have but lack
sufficient quantity to meet needs. We cannot address this without adding space. 

☒Space is allocated for child and family use with furniture and equipment designed for use by
children.

☒The library has enough shelving and other types of display and storage to provide patrons with
easy access to all materials. The lack of overall space and layout makes adequate display
space challenging, but we do the best we can with our existing space. 

☒Shelving in the areas serving young children is scaled to their needs.

79



Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 6 of 18 

Chapter 5 – Building Infrastructure and Maintenance 
☒The library maintains an inventory of all facility systems, including sufficient basic information

that can be used in maintenance operations. This list should be prepared by the library
administrator. 

☒The library’s facility inventory system list should be consolidated in an easily accessible
document which is made available in electronic format such that it can be accessed by key staff
at all times remotely. 

☒An ongoing maintenance checklist of building maintenance that needs to be done on a routine
or ongoing basis should be kept.

☒The library’s operating budget should include funds for all ongoing maintenance costs.

☒The library should maintain a periodic repair checklist of repairs to the facility that may be
required on a periodic basis, typically more than one-year intervals.

☒The library budget should allocate funds for periodic repairs in either its operating budget or
special reserve fund.

☒The library should have a list of all projected building capital projects. Capital projects are those
projects that involve major repairs, rehabilitation, and/or replacement of facility systems. Such
projects are implemented when a facility system has reached the end of its service life, or when 
defects in the original construction necessitate major repairs/replacement. 

☒The library develops a capital reserve fund that will fund major capital projects. Annual
contributions to such a fund will allow the library to have sufficient funding to take care of the
needed project. In general, any item that cannot be accounted for in the library’s operating 
budget should be accounted for in the library’s capital reserve fund. 

☒The library should have a capital asset plan. This plan can be written by the library administrator
or by an outside professional. A capital asset plan will project facility funding needs over a ten,
fifteen, and twenty-year period. 

☒The board of trustees should review the library capital plan on annual basis to ensure all projects
are addressed.

☒Every three to five years, review and update the capital asset plan to be certain all costs and
interest rates are current.

☒All warranties, manuals, contact information, and other such documentation should be
organized and consolidated for easy access.

☒The library should strive to make its building as environmentally friendly as possible.

80



Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 7 of 18 

Chapter 6 - Safety 
☒The library provides a list of emergency call numbers at all staff phones in the library.

☒The library has a floor plan that shows entrances, exits, location of emergency supplies, fire
alarms, and fire extinguishers.

☒The library has an emergency manual and disaster plan.

☒The library provides emergency training for staff, including fire and tornado drills, use of fire
extinguishers, and location of the first aid kit, NARCAN® kit, and an automated external
defibrillator. 

☒The library provides a call list and contact information that is reviewed biannually.

☒Emergency medical supplies are stored in a designated location and are accessible to staff.

☒Emergency equipment such as electric, gas and water switches, fire extinguishers, and fire
alarms are noted on a library floor plan and are tested biannually.

☐A prioritization list shows what should be salvaged in order of importance. Will evaluate and
create something within the next calendar year.

☒A building safety checklist includes daily, weekly, quarterly, semi-annual, and annual safety
procedures.

☒A procedure exists for letting staff know when it is unsafe to enter the building.

☒The library has a designated tornado shelter.

☒Emergency exits and evacuation routes out of the library and to the tornado shelter are clearly
marked. Fire extinguishers are clearly marked.

☒The library provides adequate security for staff, users, and collections. We made a number of
improvements this year but still need some additional exits added to the building.

☒The library has a strong relationship with local police and community safety personnel and
communicates with them on a regular basis about safety issues affecting the library.

☒At least two people (one of whom may be a volunteer) shall be on duty during all open hours of
operation.

☒Copies of the emergency manual and disaster plan are provided to community safety personnel.

☒A policy for security camera usage has been adopted and signage is posted. Draft in process
and will be brought to January 2024 Board Meeting for approval.

81



Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 8 of 18 

Chapter 7 - Collection Management 
☒The library board of trustees ensures that the library has a publicly funded budget to purchase

materials.

☒The minimum annual expenditure for materials for any size library should be a minimum of 8 to
12 percent of the operating budget. Library budgets should put priority on purchasing
materials that best serve their community. 

☒The library has a written collection development policy approved by the board.

☒Materials are cataloged according to standard library practices utilizing MARC 21, AACR2 Rules,
Sears/LC subject headings, and RDA.

☒Library collections are evaluated annually to measure the effectiveness of community use of the
collection and weeded if deemed appropriate.

☒The library considers forming a cooperative collection plan with other libraries in close
proximity to one another.

☒The library strives to complement its print collection by purchasing electronic materials and
making them available to patrons through a variety of methods.

☒The library publicizes and promotes interlibrary loan to its patrons.

☒Library staff is trained in and follows policies and procedures related to the ILLINET Interlibrary
Loan Code and the ALA Interlibrary Loan Code. Libraries agree to be responsible borrowers and
lenders. 

82



Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 9 of 18 

Chapter 8 – System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing 
☒Library staff and library board members are aware of the services offered by the regional library

systems and the Illinois State Library. The library promotes statewide cooperative services in
addition to their own local services. 

☒Library resources, information, and expertise are available via interlibrary loan, reciprocal
borrowing, and other formal cooperative agreements; and the library participates in system
delivery. 

☒The library abides by the ILLINET Interlibrary Loan Code as well as other formal
regional/consortial agreements.

☒The library administrator, library staff, and library board members actively participate as
members of boards, committees, task forces, advisory councils, etc., at various levels, including
the regional library system, the Illinois State Library, and the Illinois Library Association, and 
bring a regional and statewide perspective that envisions all types of libraries, not just their 
local library and library type issues. 

☒The library, in cooperation with regional library systems and the Illinois State Library, promotes
statewide tax-supported public library service for every Illinois resident.

☒If a legally established public library currently does not meet the eligibility requirements for
Illinois State Library/Illinois Office of the Secretary of State grants, the library should work in
cooperation with its regional library system regarding grant eligibility and compliance. 

83



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 10 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 9 – Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory Services 
 
Reference Services 
☒All basic services are available when the library is open. 

☒The library has a reference service policy. 

☒The library provides staff trained in reference service to meet the needs of patrons who have 
challenges with disabilities, language, and literacy. 

☒The library participates in interlibrary loan and resource sharing to help provide accurate and 
timely reference service. 

☒The library is aware of the importance of accuracy in reference service and relies on information 
sources of demonstrated currency and authority. 

☒The library supports training in the use of technologies necessary to access electronic resources, 
including training for persons with disabilities in the use of adaptive equipment and software. 

☒The library provides easy access to accurate and up-to-date community information. 

☒The library provides current issues of at least one community or local newspaper and retains 
hard copy or online back issues for a minimum of six months. 

☒The library provides access to local ordinances or codes of all municipalities within its service 
boundaries. 

☒The library provides access to local and state maps. 

☒The library provides access to the minutes of local government meetings. These include but are 
not limited to municipal (village, township, or city) and school board meetings. 

☒The library provides voter information, including precinct boundaries and location of polling 
places. 

☒The library provides information about local history and events. 

☒The library has at least one current reference resource for each subject area. 

☒Staff has access to a telephone or computer to receive and respond to requests for information 
and materials and to contact other agencies for information. 

☒Staff members are encouraged to attend at least one relevant continuing education event each 
year. 

☒The library evaluates its reference service on an annual basis. 

  

84



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 11 of 18 

 
 
Reader’s Advisory Services 
☒All basic services are available when the library is open. 

☒The library has competently trained staff that has thorough knowledge of popular authors and 
titles. 

☒The library maintains a well-rounded collection of both fiction and nonfiction titles. 

☒The library participates in interlibrary loan and resource sharing to help provide accurate and 
timely reader’s advisory service. 

☒The library maintains a basic collection of reader’s advisory reference materials. 

☒All staff members attend at least one relevant continuing education event each year. 

☒Staff members who are responsible for reader’s advisory service in their library join at least one 
community organization, club, or council. 

☒Staff members who are responsible for reader’s advisory service in their library attend at least 
one workshop, reading roundtable, or continuing education event. 

☐The library accepts and responds to reader’s advisory requests received in person, on the phone, 
or electronically. 

  

85



Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 12 of 18 

Chapter 10 - Programming 
☒Library programs are provided free of charge, or on a cost recovery basis.

☒Library programs are located in a physically accessible location.

☒Provisions are made, as needed, to enable persons with disabilities to participate in the program.
The availability of these provisions is noted with other information about the program.

☒The library considers community demographics, special populations, and the availability of
programming from other social, cultural, and recreational organizations in the community
when planning and evaluating programs. 

☒The library presents educational, cultural, and recreational programs that reflect community
needs and interests.

☒Programming is designed to address the diversity within the community, to increase the
awareness and use of library resources and services, and to attract new users.

☒The library provides outreach programs to specific populations who cannot visit the library.

☒The library has programming that seeks to serve children and their caregivers.

☒The library has programming that seeks to serve young adults.

☒The library has programming that seeks to serve adults and senior citizens.

☒The library provides programs on library instruction for all ages. This includes online catalog
and online database training opportunities.

☒The library is encouraged to partner with other organizations to offer programs.

86



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 13 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 11 - Youth/Young Adult Services 
☒All basic youth services are available when the library is open. 

☒The library provides staff trained in serving youth. 

☒The library has policies towards serving youth which it reviews at least every two years, and 
youth staff have input in these policy revisions and creations. 

☒The library actively promotes respect for diversity and creates an inclusive, welcoming, and 
respectful library atmosphere for all patrons. 

☒The library provides staff trained in assisting youth with disabilities, language, and literacy 
barriers.  

☒The library provides staff trained to assist youth with adaptive equipment and software as 
needed for accessibility of resources.  Currently working on identifying any assistive 
equipment that would meet resource needs. Have not had any requests.  

☒The library strives to eliminate barriers of service for youth, including regularly reviewing any 
content restrictions, library card requirements, and Internet policies. 

☒The library regularly, and at least annually, evaluates its services for youth with regard to 
popularity, effectiveness, accuracy, timeliness, and patron ease. The library seeks input from 
staff serving youth—as well as the community—regarding these services. 

☒The library provides programming for youth which is developmentally appropriate and meets 
the needs of the community. 

☒The library’s programming is designed to reflect the needs and interests of youth in the 
community. 

☒Library programs are provided free of charge or on a cost-recovery basis. 

☒The library makes provisions that enable persons with disabilities to attend programming and 
lists these provisions with other programming information.  

☒The library considers community demographics, special populations, and the availability of 
resources from social, cultural, and recreational organizations in the community when 
planning and evaluating library services for youth. 

☒The library strives to partner with youth-facing organizations in the community. 

☒The library provides youth with research and information literacy instruction through tours, 
training sessions, and one-on-one interactions. 

☒The library has staff who have knowledge of popular authors, titles, and resources to provide 
these services. 

 

87



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 14 of 18 

 

 

☒Youth staff have access to a telephone and computer to receive and respond to requests for 
information and to contact other agencies. 

☒Youth staff responsible for collection management have access to review journals and tools 
specifically targeting youth materials. 

☒The library includes at least one current resource created and intended for youth for each 
subject area. Electronic resources also fulfill this requirement. 

☒The library provides computer access for all youth and provides guidance on digital literacy and 
technology use to youth. 

☒The library provides outreach services towards youth to increase awareness of services, attract 
new users, and reach underserved populations. 

☒The library strives to partner with and support local schools, including private schools and 
homeschoolers. 

☒Staff members are encouraged to attend as many continuing education workshops and events as 
possible to stay current on trends and best practices for serving youth. 

☒The library provides a space specifically for use by children and families. 

☒The shelving used for housing children’s materials is appropriately sized to allow for easier 
access. 

☒The library provides early literacy programming, including regular story time, for children and 
families. 

☒The library provides programming which facilitates play and fun for children and families. 

☒The library provides toys and interactive materials for use in the library, during programs, 
and/or at home that facilitate play, fun, and imagination. 

☒The library provides a summer reading opportunity to encourage reading and learning during 
the summer. 

☒The library provides a welcoming environment for young adults both individually and in groups. 

☒The library provides developmentally appropriate programming for young adults that encourage 
self-identity and positive interactions while providing opportunities to socialize and have fun. 

☒The library provides materials both physical and digital for young adults that are intended for 
them.  

☒The library partners with young adults in the community to provide opportunities for leadership 
such as a young adult (or teen) advisory board, volunteer group, or other formal or informal 
opportunities.   

88



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 15 of 18 

 
 
Chapter 12 - Technology 
☒Based on local technology planning, the library ensures adequate technological access and 

maintains appropriate hardware/software that effectively accommodates both library 
operations and patron need. 

☒The library has:  

☒a telephone, with a listing in the phone book; 

☒a telephone voice mail and/or answering machine; 

☒a fax and/or scanner; 

☒a photocopier; 

☒effective Internet access with sufficient capacity to meet the needs of both the staff and 
the public; 

☒library and/or departmental email accounts for patron communication with the library 
(the library email account is reviewed and responded to during library hours); 

☒an Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant library website that is updated at least 
monthly;  

☒up-to-date computers for staff and public access with sufficient capacity to meet needs; 

☒up-to-date printers for staff and public access with sufficient capacity to meet needs; 

☒up-to-date antivirus and Internet security software protection installed on every library 
computer; 

☒up-to-date Internet browsers, web applications, and plug-ins; 

☒a valid email address, accessible via the library’s website, for the library administrator; 
and 

☒a website that includes basic library information such as hours, location, contact, official 
name of library, and content required by the Open Meetings Act. 

☒The library provides a sufficient number of patron-accessible workstations/devices on a per 
capita basis. 

☒The wait time for patron workstations does not exceed 15 to 30 minutes. 

☒The library annually evaluates and, if necessary, updates its Internet connectivity options for 
service impact and cost-effectiveness. 

☒The library provides 24/7 remote access to library services and resources through: 

a web-accessible library catalog; 

89



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 16 of 18 

 

 

 

☒an Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant library website that is updated at 
least monthly;  

☒appropriate regional, state, national, and international bibliographic databases; 

☒other authenticated electronic resources that are available for direct patron use;  

☒virtual reference service, and/or text messaging services, and/or a library email account. 

☒The library staff must be: 

☒computer literate; 

☒trained to use and assist patrons in the use of electronic resources and materials; and 

☒accessible via email and/or through messaging services. 

☒The library provides or partners with other community agencies to offer its patrons instruction 
(workshops, classes) in the use of computers, email, productivity software, and the Internet. 

☒The library provides web links and access to regional and/or statewide initiatives including: 

☒regional library system consortial web-based catalogs; 

☒the CARLI academic library catalog (I-Share) 

☒Illinois State Library-sponsored databases/e-resources; other electronic collections as 
available; and 

☒virtual reference service.  

☒As an equal partner in resource sharing, the library inputs and makes its collection holdings 
accessible for resource sharing within a regional, statewide, national, and/or international 
database. 

☒The library has a board-adopted Internet acceptable use policy. 

☒The Internet acceptable use policy is reviewed annually.  

☒The library budgets for ongoing technology needs including but not limited to: hardware and 
software purchases, upgrades, ongoing maintenance, services, and connectivity. 

☒The library maintains, troubleshoots, repairs, and replaces computer hardware and software. 
This ongoing maintenance is handled by trained library staff and/or via a contractual service 
agreement with an appropriate service provider. 

☒The library develops and updates, at regular intervals, a long-range/strategic plan for its future 
technology needs. The plan is based on community needs and priorities. 

90



 

Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 17 of 18 

 

 

 

☒The library continuously strives to improve its technological services, resources, and access. An 
ongoing planning cycle includes a needs assessment that examines current and emerging 
technologies and service enhancements including but not limited to: 

☒wireless access (Wi-Fi); 

☒Internet connectivity upgrades sufficient for patron and staff use; 

☒networking (local area vs. wide area); 

☒library Intranet; 

☒an Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant library website that is updated at least 
monthly, highlights library services and programs, includes hyperlinks, is mobile 
compatible, and is interactive;  

☒patron self-checkout functionality; 

☒new technologies/potential services; for example, social networking, makerspace, and 
mobile apps; 

☒current and functional meeting room technology; 

☒adaptive technologies that accommodate service needs for persons with disabilities and 
special populations, including but not limited to: accessible computer hardware, deaf 
interpreters, language translators, open captioning; and  

☒ongoing staff continuing education/training related to all aspects of technological 
services. 

☒The library protects the integrity, safety, and security of its technological environment. 

☒The library’s automated catalog and its components comply with current state, national, and 
international standards. 

☒The library is aware of E-rate discounts (telecommunications/connectivity services and/or 
Internet access) as available through the Schools and Libraries Program of the Universal 
Service Fund, administered by the Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC) under 
the direction of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). 

  

91



Serving Our Public 4.0 Checklist 2023 Review Page 18 of 18 

Chapter 13- Marketing, Promotion, and Collaboration 
☒The library has a communications plan that supports the library’s long-range/strategic plan.

Currently in the process of creating this.

☒The library staff and trustees participate in two or more cooperative activities with other
community organizations.

☒The library’s services and programs are promoted in the community. Check the applicable
publicity methods.

☒flyers

☒brochures

☒website

☒newsletter

☒posters

☒banners

☒displays

☐podcasting No plans to pursue podcasts at this time.

☒presentations and/or speeches

☐Billboards/other No plans to pursue Billboard ads at this time.

☒The library maintains at least one social media account.

☒The library invites local, state, and federal officials to visit the library.

☒The library’s website is updated at least monthly.

☒The board, administration, and staff conduct an annual library walk-through.

☒The board, administration, and appropriate staff visit other libraries.

☒The budget includes funds for public relations and marketing activities.

☒The library’s promotional methods and services are ADA compliant.

☒A designated staff member coordinates the library’s marketing efforts.

☒The library’s staff receives customer service and marketing training.

☒The library’s orientation for staff and trustees includes the library’s public relations, customer
service philosophy, library history, funding sources, and long-range/strategic plan.

☒The library surveys patrons and the community to judge awareness of the library’s programs and
services.

92


	23DEC Board Meeting Agenda
	23NOV Minutes
	23NOV Financials
	Header
	Main

	23DEC Director's Report
	COLLECTIONS
	Physical Adult (By Location)
	Physical Youth (By Location)
	Physical Miscellaneous
	Physical Adult (By Type)
	MTD Total Physical Circulation
	Digital Circulation


	23-Winnetka-Northfield SAS114-Final
	23-Winnetka-Northfield FS-Final
	WNPLD Standards 4.0 Checklist 2023
	Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries
	Chapter 1 - Core Standards
	Chapter 3 - Personnel
	Chapter 4 - Access
	Chapter 5 – Building Infrastructure and Maintenance
	Chapter 6 - Safety
	Chapter 7 - Collection Management
	Chapter 8 – System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing
	Chapter 9 – Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory Services
	Reference Services
	Reader’s Advisory Services

	Chapter 10 - Programming
	Chapter 11 - Youth/Young Adult Services
	Chapter 12 - Technology
	Chapter 13- Marketing, Promotion, and Collaboration





